
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        JULY 16, 2012 

                                                                            6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / July 2, 2012 

                                                    

                                    

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware   

          Review minutes / July 9
th
  

1.) Ordinances: 

a.)  Appropriation of Funds: Pinehill Road Resurfacing / Ordinance 2012-47           

b.)  Amending the Lodging Tax Ordinance Time Extension / Ordinance 2012-48 

c.)  Amending the Personnel Policy No. 1.3.3 Regulating the Political Participation Rights of 

      Employees / Ordinance 2012-49 

 

          2.)    Resolutions: 
                   a.)  Bid Award:  Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus / Sunbelt Fire Apparatus / Resolution 2012-48         

    b.)  Bid Award:  Thermal imaging Camera / Sunbelt Fire Apparatus / Resolution 2012-49  

    c,) Bid Award: Jail Food Service / Negotiated / Winn-Dixie / Resolution 2012-50 

           d.)   Fiber Installation to Designated City Buildings Contract / Resolution 2012-51 

 

           3.)    Motions: 
           a.)  Motion to REJECT the 2012-O-Safety Shoe/Boots Bid 

                   b.)  Motion to recommend Council to close the 2006 Construction Fund and to transfer funds in the 

                          amount of $715,269 to the Capital Reserve Fund for use on future capital projects. 

 

          4.)     Financial Reports: 

Treasurers Report / June 30, 2012 

Sales & Use Tax Collections / May 31, 2012 

Lodging Tax Collections / May 31, 2012 

 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake     

    C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware   

           Review minutes / July 11
th
  

 

 D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Reese  

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  - Conaway   

          Review minutes / June 19
th
  

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

           Review minutes / May 3, 2011 

 

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette   

          Review minutes / June 25
th
   

          Presentation:  Casey Zito, Chairman 

           

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                       JULY 16, 2012                                     PAGE   2 

 

 

C.  Industrial Development Board –  Conaway             

    D.  Library Board – Lake  

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette 

           Review minutes / May 24
th
  

a.)  Set a Public Hearing date for August 20, 2012 to consider: 

Rezone:    D. R. Horton, Inc. 

Location:   West of AL Hwy 181, near the intersection of  Camberwell Drive 

                        and Devonfield Lane 

Present Zoning: B-1, Local Business, R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential and 

    R-3, High Density Single Family 

Proposed Zoning: R-1, Low Density Single Family 

                      Recommendation:  Failed to set forth a favorable recommendation. 

                                               Although the majority of those present voted in favor of 

                                               The motion, a super majority would have been  

                                               Necessary for a favorable recommendation   

 

 F.  Recreation Board – Reese     

    G.  Utility Board - Scott          
           Review minutes / May 30

th
  

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report  
           a.)  Special Events Permit / Christ the King Church / Prayer for America / October 13, 2012  

     B.  City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:  

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

     

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Bid Award: Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus / Sunbelt Fire  

      Apparatus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-48 

 

b.)  Bid Award:  Thermal Imaging Camera / Sunbelt Fire  

      Apparatus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-49 

 

c.)    Bid Award: Jail Food Service / Winn-Dixie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-50 
 

d.)    Fiber Installation to Designated City Buildings Contract. . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-51 

 

e.)   Appointing Election Officials. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-52 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

] 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                       JULY 16, 2012                                     PAGE   3 
 

 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 
 

          2
nd

   READ 

a.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Resurfacing: Ryan Avenue to  

      Bayfront Drive . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-46 

 

 

     1
ST

 READ 
b.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Pinehill Road Resurfacing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-47 

 

c.)    Amending use of Lodging Tax Proceeds Time Extension. . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-48 

 

d.)   Amending Personnel Policy 1.3.3 Regulating the Political  

       Participation Rights of Employees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-49 

 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             



JULY 2, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

1 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Pro tem Boulware called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
The invocation was given by Mr. Willie Robison. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway;; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron Scott; 

Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

ABSENT:  Cathy Barnette.  

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City 

Clerk; James White, Fire Chief; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; 

Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Adrienne 

Jones, Planning Director; Anne Morris, Reference Librarian; Officer Rick Oliver, Police 

Department; Willie Robison, BZA; Larry Cooke, BZA; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; Al Guarisco, 

Village Point Foundation; Toni Fasbender, IDB; State Representative Randy Davis. 

 

ABSENT:  Jay Ross, City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Tonja Young, 

Library Director; Kim Briley, Finance Director. 

 

  

3. APPROVE MINUTES: 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt the June 18, 2012 council meeting 

minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt the June 11, 2012 council work session 

minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

PROCLAMATION:    Daphne Firefighter Month / Muscular Dystorphy Association / Nickole  

                                        Martel 

 

Mayor Yelding read and presented the proclamation to Ms. Martel as Chief White and firefighter 

Adam Queen looked on. 

 



JULY 2, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

2 
 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A. FINANCE – Boulware 

No report. 

 

 B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The meeting for this afternoon was cancelled.  No report. 

 

 C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 

No report.  The next meeting will be July 13
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

 D. CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

No report.  The next meeting will be July 13
th

 after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

 E.        PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/ SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Conaway 

No report. 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

 A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The minutes for the December 1, 2011 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be 

Thursday at 6:00 p.m. 

 

 B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

No report. 

 

 C. Industrial Development Board – Conaway 

No report. 

 

 D. Library Board – Lake 

The Summer read program concluded abut three days ago, and other programs are going on.  

Councilman Lake thanked the Civic Center and Recreation Center for providing space for some 

of the programs. 

 

 E. Planning Commission – Barnette 

No report. 

 

 F. Recreation Board – Reese 

No report. 

 

 G. Utility Board – Scott 

No report.  The next meeting will be the last Wednesday of the month at 5:00 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers. 

 



JULY 2, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

3 
 

Council President Pro tem Boulware moved Public Participation up so that the business 

community could speak before the motion under the Mayor’s report is considered. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Mr. Bob Segalla – 8100 Palmetto Court -   does not see any harm in allowing banners on 

building.  They just want to avoid a carnival atmosphere. 

 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Owner of several businesses in Daphne – feels the sign ordinance is the 

most harmful ordinance passed in Daphne, and that it is not business friendly. 

 

Mr. Douglas Dugat – 9391 Montpelier Place – commended council on considering the motion 

for the businesses.  He feels commerce and taxes pay for the quality of life the citizens enjoy. He 

feels the council should consider more lenient measures on a long term permanent basis.  He 

challenged anyone to find a sign in Daphne that looks as bad as the oak trees on US 98 that have 

been slaughtered completely on one side.  The half trees are not appropriate. 

 

Mrs. Pauline LeJeune – Owner Market by the Bay -   feels that allowing banners on buildings 

is not unreasonable.  Council needs to do something to help the small businesses, and change the 

Land Use Ordinance. 

 

Mr. Dane Hagood – 9221 TimberCreek Boulevard – feels the proposed motion does not address 

real estate needs regarding banners on vacant commercial buildings that are for sale. 

 

Mrs. Toni Fassbender – 103 Pippin Circle – thanked council for considering the motion on the 

agenda. She feels that council should take care of the businesses that support the city. 

 

Mr. Robin LeJeune – Owner Market by the Bay – 102 Havenwood Circle – said he has given 

the Mayor a petition of 92 business owners in favor of banners on buildings.  Banners are a way 

of giving the public knowledge.  They would like to work with council to make permanent 

changes to the Land Use Ordinance after the summer is over. 

 

Mr. Victor LeJeune – Owner Market by the Bay - 126 Hope Drive -   thanked the Mayor and 

council for their leadership.  He wants to work with council on this issue to come to a reasonable 

solution. 

 

Mr. Shelly Asmus – LifeSouth Blood Bank -   asked for seven days a week for sandwich signs 

instead of three, because donations of blood suffers for a lack of signage. 

 

Mr. Todd Keith – 518 Ridgewood Drive – Owner of a graphic and sign business – feels the Land 

Use Ordinance needs to be change to help businesses. 

 

Ms. Jennifer Miller – 10358  Tampary Street – spoke regarding a cross walk on Highway 181 in 

front of the Urgent Care.  She said she spoke with someone at ALDOT today and they said if the 

city would support the project they would relook at the issue. There are some timing and 



JULY 2, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

4 
 

signaling studies going on now on Highway 181 from Highway 90 up to Highway 31, and this 

could possibly be looked at within that study.   

 

 

 

6. REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

 A. Mayor’s Report 

                         

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to exercise the authority of the City Council granted by 

Section 33-5 (e) (1) of the Land Use Ordinance:  the City Council recognizes the economic 

recession and has determined that this is an on-going economic down-turn that is affecting 

businesses in the City of Daphne. The City Council has determined that the recession is an 

occasion in which it can exercise its authority to allow temporary signage and banners in 

order to stimulate and support local businesses.  Therefore, temporary signs and banners 

as described in promotional weekends are authorized in the City of Daphne each Friday at 

12:00am through Sunday at 11:59pm beginning July 6, 2012 and ending October 1, 2012.  

Such temporary signs and banners must meet all other requirements and provisions of the 

Land Use Ordinance. Motion does not suspend or replace any provisions of the sign 

ordinance, and reiterates that all other requirements of the sign ordinance remain under 

stringent and uniform enforcement.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

Mayor Yelding said that he is excited to do this for the businesses.  H thanked the council for 

supporting him in this act.  He said council makes the laws and he has to enforce them. He asked 

the business owners to take what they have given them, and to use it to their advantage, but don’t 

misuse it.  The Code Enforcement Officer is still out there.   

 

 B. City Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

 C. Department Head Comments 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – announced the will be fireworks on July 4
th

, and they 

will have hot dogs, inflatable water slides and snow cones.  The Recreation Board will meet 

Wednesday, July 11
th

 at 6:30 p.m.  Fall sports registration starts July 14
th

.  Daphne “M” (Peanut)  

Dixie Youth District Champions will play in the State Championship game July 6
th

 at Enterprise. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director -  reported the Civic Center will have an Open House 

July 10
th

 4:00 – 6:30 p.m. 

 

 



JULY 2, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

5 
 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Public Hearing was held earlier in the meeting. 

 

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS: 

  

 RESOLUTIONS: 
a.)   Appointing Members to the Metropolitan Planning 

        Organization (MPO) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-45 

 

b.)    Bid Award:  Main Street Resurfacing: McAdams Avenue  

        to Bayfront  / Hosea O. Weaver & Sons, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-46 

 

c.)    Appointing the City Clerk to Perform All the Duties 

        Otherwise Required to Be Performed by the Mayor 

        In the 2012 Municipal Election and Run-Off Election . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-47 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Resolution 2012-45. 

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED           MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Resolution 2012-46.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTIONBY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Resolution 2012-47.  

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-47.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 



JULY 2, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

6 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolutions 2012-45 and 2012-46.  Seconded by 

Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

           

          2
nd

  READ 

a.)  Amend Ordinance 2003-32 / Noise Ordinance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-35 

 

b.)   Appropriation of Funds: Sports Complex Entrance Road. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-44 

 

c.)  Appropriation of Funds:  City Hall Chiller Maintenance 

       Agreement. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-45 

     

        1
ST 

READ 

d.)  Appropriation of Funds:  Resurfacing: Ryan Avenue to  

       Bayfront Drive . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-46 

      

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2012-35. Seconded by 

Councilman Palumbo.  
 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED           MOTION CARRIED     

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-35.  Seconded by Councilman 

Reese. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Conaway   Aye    Scott   Nay 

Lake    Aye    Palumbo  Aye 

Reese    Aye    Boulware  Aye 

  

AYE    Conaway, Lake, Reese, Palumbo, Boulware                             NAY    Scott 

 

                                                                  MOTION CARRIED 

 

 



JULY 2, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

7 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2012-44 and 2012-

45.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-44.  Seconded by Councilman 

Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2012-45.   Seconded by Councilman 

Reese.  
 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED  

 

 

Ordinance 2012-46 was a 1
st
 Read. 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Mayor Yelding said that they will start upgrading the sound system next week.  He also 

announced that qualifying to run for mayor or council will start tomorrow at 8:00 a.m. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway extended an invitation to Ms. Miller, about the sidewalks, to attend the 

Public Works Committee meeting on the third Monday at 5:00 p.m., and they can address it 

there, and the Public Works Director will be at the meeting. 

 

Councilman Lake said that State Representative Randy Davis and former councilman Greg 

Burnam is in the audience tonight.  He wished everyone a safe and enjoyable 4
th

 of July. 

 

Council President Pro tem Boulware thanked the business community for coming out tonight.  

He also appreciates those that attend the council meetings on a regular basis.  He wished 

everyone a safe 4
th

 of July. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



JULY 2, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

8 
 

 

10. ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilwoman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 

 

 

_______________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

 

        Certification of Presiding Officer, 

 

 

        __________________________________ 

        Derek Boulware, Council President Pro tem 

 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

July 9, 2012 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:03 pm.  Present were Councilman Ron Scott, Councilwoman Tommie 
Conaway, Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta, and Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson. 
 
Chairman Derek Boulware arrived at 4:20 
 
Finance Director Kim Briley was absent. 
 
Also in attendance were Human Resources Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director Richard Johnson, 
Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Revenue Officer Heather Gywnn, and FD Battalion Chief Andy Ray. 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation. 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

Update on Human Resources Department Activity  
 
Ms. Vickie Hinman gave an update on the Human Resources department.  She noted that the new Building 
Maintenance Technician started on June 28

th
 and that a supplemental questionnaire was sent out to selected IT 

Coordinator applicants with interviews to follow.  Interviewing is in process for the Mechanical Administrative 
Technician position and applications for the GIS Technician position are being reviewed.  
 
Building Inspections were completed at Civic Center and Recreation Center with no findings.  Ms. Hinman noted 
that the last Safety Committee meeting discussed accident reports need to be competed immediately following 
an injury.  The next Safety Committee meeting will be July 15 at 10 a.m. 
 
Other Human Resources Projects include: 
 
 Revision of policy 1.3.3 – Political Participation 
 Benefits Fair scheduled for August 1 – Theme:  50’s Sock Hop 
 Employee training on FMLA, Worker’s Comp and Short Term Disability is complete 
 Fire Lieutenant written test – June 15 
 Promotional testing and Interviews are complete for Fire Lieutenant  

Continuation of I-9 Audit (Federal documentation requirements to proof citizenship / legal immigrant 
status) 

Ms. Hinman noted that the Political Participation ordinance is included in the packet and explained that in the 
current employee handbook there is verbiage that states that employees are restricting from participating in 
political activities. Ms. Hinman noted that this ordinance is to update the employee book by stating that 
employees may participate in political activities as long as the employee is not at work or in a City uniform.  
Discussion was made that the verbiage is directly from the Code of Alabama.  Mr. Scott added that the City 
cannot deny due process for any employee. 
 
Mayor Yelding thanked Ms. Hinman for the HR Report and noted that previously Human Resources did not 
have a Committee to report through and he had requested Council change that so that they would have a 
committee to report through. 
 

 
 



Finance Minutes - 7-9.doc  2  

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  June 30, 2012 

 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $18,991,181.79 was presented.  Discussion was made that the City’s funds are 
insured by the FDIC up to $100,000 and additional funds are insured by State of Alabama SAFE program for 
Municipalities. 
 

Motion by Ms. Conaway to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of June 30, 2012, in the 
amount of $18,991,181.79.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
 
 
2.  Sales and Use Taxes: May 31, 2012 
Ms. Scott discussed the Sales Tax Collection information. 
 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for May 2012    -   $911,839 
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for May 2012    -   $908,573               
Under Budget (for April)                                  -  $   3,266 
 

YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $42,426 
 
3.  Lodging Tax Collections, May 31, 2012  
 
The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $54,740.45 collected for May 2012.  Mr. Scott noted Lodging Tax 
was done by $3,140 from May 2011 collections.   
 
4.  Report: New Business Licenses – June 2012 
 
The list of new businesses, and businesses closed, in June was presented.   
 
5.  Bills Paid Reports – June 2012 
 
The Bills Paid Report was included in Packet #2. 
 
 

B.  Appropriation Request  
 

FOUR CENT GAS TAX FUND  
 

 Pinehill Road Resurfacing -  $82,500 
 

Mr. Richard Johnson discussed the Pinehill Road repair and resurfacing project and the quotes he had received 
for the project.  Mr. Johnson recommended to award the contract to Asphalt Services, Inc.  Mr. Johnson noted 
this project would address base repairs needed as well as resurfacing.  Mr. Johnson noted that this project 
came in under $4,300 than projected. Ms. Henson noted that the asphalt for the project ($35,536) would be 
purchased from the City’s current bid and noted the construction contract with Asphalt Services, Inc. would be 
for $41,264 with total project cost of $82,500. 
 
Discussion continued on other projects including the sidewalk project in front of Stratford.  Mr. Johnson 
discussed crosswalks connectivity for this area. 

  

Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council to appropriate $82,500 from the Four 
Cent Gas Tax Fund for Pinehill Road base repairs and resurfacing.  Seconded by Mr. 
Scott.   Motion carried. 
 



Finance Minutes - 7-9.doc  3  

 

C. Closing of the 2006 Construction Fund – Transfer monies to Capital Reserve Fund 
Ms. Henson discussed that a motion was needed to close the 2006 Construction Fund and to transfer the 
remaining funds in the amount of $715,269 to the Capital Reserve Fund to be used for future capital projects.  
Ms. Henson noted that Ms. Briley had advised that the remaining funds are from assessment revenues. 
 

Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council to close the 2006 Construction Fund 
and to transfer monies in the amount of $715,269 to the Capital Reserve Fund for use 
on future capital projects.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 

 
D. Bids: 

1. 2012-L-FD / SELF-CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS 
Ms. Henson reviewed the bid minutes. Battalion Chief discussed the bid and noted that Chief White’s 
recommendation was to award to the low bidder, Sunbelt Fire, in the amount of $4,669/unit.   

Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding the 
following bid:  2012-L-FD / SELF-CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS to Sunbelt 
Fire in the amount of $4,669/unit.   Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 

 
2. 2012-M-FD / THERMAL IMAGING CAMERA 

Ms. Henson reviewed the bid minutes.   Battalion Chief discussed the bid and noted that Chief White’s 
recommendation was to award to the low bidder, Sunbelt Fire, in the amount of $8,425/unit.   
 

Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding the 
following bid:  2012-M-FD / THERMAL IMAGING CAMERA to Sunbelt Fire in the amount 
of $8,425/unit.    Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 

 
3. 2012-N-JAIL FOOD 

Ms. Henson discussed that no bids were received for this bid and that historically there has always 
been difficult getting a response for this bid and it is not uncommon to have to negotiate a contract for 
this contract.  Ms. Henson noted that according to State Bid Law this bid could be negotiated and Lt. 
Yelding would be following up on negotiating the contract.  Ms. Henson noted that she would include 
the negotiated information in the Council packet if information is obtained in time for submittal. 
 

Motion needed once negotiated bid received. 

 
 

4. 2012-O-SAFETY SHOES/BOOTS 
Ms. Henson noted that there was only one bidder for this bid although 11 bid requests were sent out.  
Ms. Henson noted that the 25 mile distance for the vendor’s business location most likely is why the 
response is so low but that this requirement is important because employees have to travel to the 
vendor’s store location to be fitted for shoes/boots.  Mr. Johnson discussed the bid and requested the 
bid be rejected and rebid so he could try to encourage more submittals to keep the bid competitive by 
finding more local vendors to send the bid packet to. Mr. Johnson noted that the cost of the bids alone 
is not the only factor in consideration of awarding this bid that the time required by employees to travel 
to and from the store location needs to be considered. 
 

Motion by Ms. Conaway to reject the Safety Shoes/Boots bid and rebid.  Seconded by 
Mr. Scott. 

 
E.  Discuss waiving Temporary Vendor License Fee for Jubilee Festival 
Ms. Gwynn discussed that Ms. Ellis, Mayor’s Administrative Assistant had asked her about waiving that fee in 
order to attract more vendors.  Ms. Ciancetta stated that historically the City has not required the vendors to pay 
this license fee.  Mr. Scott discussed the difference in a temporary vendor who is required to get a license 



Finance Minutes - 7-9.doc  4  

versus the festival type vendor who is only here once a year for the festival.  Mr. Scott further discussed that he 
felt the festival is the type of event where the festival operator should be licensed but not each booth.  Mr. 
Boulware asked how much the City brings in from the license fee.  Ms. Gwyn answered the fee is $55/vendor 
but this has not always been collected and noted that when she started trying to enforce the license there were 
complaints.  Mayor Yelding noted that Ms. Ellis would be working with the Chamber to increase vendor booth 
participation. 
 

Finance Committee recommended to send request to full Council to consider waiving the license fee for 
Jubilee Festival vendors for the FY2013 Budget. 

 
F.  Fiber Agreement & Update on Wireless 
 
Ms. Henson reviewed that she had been obtaining quotes and monitoring fiber connectivity since 2002 and the 
cost has been too high in previous years but the cost has come down over the last few years.  Ms. Henson 
explained the City has a need for a better internet connectivity network. Ms. Henson noted that included in the 
packet for comparison is the latest quote received in 2011 ($26,829)  for just installing fiber to City buildings (this 
cost does not include the monthly cost for internet connection). (NOTE: The quote previous to the 2011 quote was 

$26,000 just to install  fiber at the Justice Center so they could connect to the County’s 911 service).  Ms. Henson 
explained that the fiber agreement included in the packet has been reviewed and approved by the City attorney.  
Ms. Henson noted that RFP’s had been sent out to include fiber and wireless connectivity for all City buildings, 
proposals were received and forwarded to the City Attorney for advice.  The City attorney advised, after talking 
with the League of Municipalities, that the City could move forward with the fiber optic project (the fiber project 
falls under Public Works bid law requirements –projects under $50,000 do not have to be bid), but that the 
Wireless service did not fall under Public Works law and would have to be bid out (the cost for service exceeded 

$15,000/year).    
 
Ms. Henson referred to the e-mails from Captain Bell that were included in the packet and summarized saying 
that there has been serious issues with down time with the current T1 and DSL connections at the North 
Precinct.  Captain Bell wrote that there is a need to move forward quickly for a resolution.  Ms. Henson noted 
that North Precinct was just found to have the capability to connect to Fiber and that connectivity options change 
constantly as more fiber is installed throughout the City’s right of ways  
 
  Mr. Scott asked Mr. Johnson to discuss how Public Works would benefit from the Fiber.  Mr. Johnson 
discussed the benefit of connecting to the County and having access to already prepared maps of the area.  Mr. 
Johnson stated PW could take this information and use it to compile reports for projects such as MS4 report or 
other drainage, storm outfall issues.  Mr. Johnson also noted that the county’s GIS database will assist with 
monitoring and placement of street signs. Mr. Johnson noted that the County is allowing the City to access up to 
date property information such as current ownership and other changes as they occur.  
 
Ms. Hinman stated that the Fire Department is having a lot of issues with the transfer of information through 
Kronos.  Battalion Chief Andy Ray noted that there was a fiber pipe just installed in front of Fire Station #2 last  
week and inquired if fiber could be connected to the building.  Mr. Ray discussed that all the fire station’s 
internet connection is extremely slow and all fire stations connect to Fire Station #2 improvement is needed.  
Ms. Henson noted that the Fire Stations were originally recommended to have wireless connectivity by JMF but 
with this new install of Fiber she would check to see what the cost would be to connect fiber to Fire Station #2.   
 
Ms. Henson asked Mr. Lance Alexander, CBI about the fiber improving speed for the fire stations.  Mr. 
Alexander advised the wireless combination recommended by JMF working with a fiber connection will be far 
superior to the current DSL connection.  Ms. Henson noted that at this time not all City departments would be 
converted to the fiber due to cost and location of available fiber, but wireless connectivity is being evaluated for 
the City as a whole. Ms. Henson again explained that the initial RFP included all City departments for improving 
internet connectivity speed but after legal review the fiber and wireless projects had to be contracted separately 
in order to meet the state bid law.   
 
Discussion continued with the Finance Committee advising Ms. Henson that once the cost to connect fiber for 
Fire Station #5 was obtained to forward the cost of connecting fiber to the following City buildings:  City Hall, 
Justice Center, Public Works, PD North Precinct, and Fire Station #2. 
 
 
 



Finance Minutes - 7-9.doc  5  

 
G.  Discuss Business License ISSUE Fee comparison  
 
Ms. Gwynn gave an update that currently most Cities are charging $10 Issue Fee and the State is planning to 
increase their Business License Issue fee to $15.  Discussion was made that at this time the Finance Committee 
did not think the City of Daphne should increase the issue fee. 
 
H.  Lodging Tax Proceeds Ordinance:  Time Extension through October 2015 
Ms. Henson noted that the current Ordinance that designates how Lodging Tax collections are allocated would 
expire in October of this year and a new ordinance needs to be adopted. Discussion continued on the Lodging 
Tax Fund and that the ordinance could be amended at any time Council chooses.  Ms. Henson noted a draft of 
the ordinance is included in the packet with the only change being to extend the currently approved allocation of 
lodging tax monies through October of 2015. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend to Council to adopt the Lodging Tax Proceeds 
Ordinance – time extension through October 2015.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway. 

 
 

V. Old Business 
 
 

VI. ADJOURN   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:30 p.m. 





























































CITY OF DAPHNE CHAIRMAN - Councilman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2 

Time: 5:00 PM on June 19, 2012  Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall Council Chambers 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
  The June meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:00 PM   

 

Present: Mayor Bailey Yelding, Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Councilwoman Cathy 

Barnette, Richard D. Johnson-Director Public Works, Sandra Cushway-PW 

Administrative Assistant, Doug Bailey-HMR 

 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report – May reports reviewed.   

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – May & YTD reports reviewed.  

C. Correspondence – Eastern Shore Urgent Care.  Complimenting Public Works employee 

Candice Bishop for going above and beyond.  Very pleasant and helpful. 

D. Correspondence – Patriots Point Memorial Dedication (Daphne Bulletin).  Had a great 

turnout.  Issues with flame staying lit have been resolved. 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – May 21, 2012.  Motion made by Councilwoman Barnette to accept the minutes 

as presented.  Motion seconded by Councilman Lake.  Motion carried. 

B. Mosquito Reports – New section on website dedicated to mosquito control.  Under Public 

Works.  Specifically new guidelines, reporting procedure and citizen education.  

Councilwoman Barnette asked if the mosquito flyers have gone out in the Riviera Utilities.  

Sandi checked into this.  The flyers have not gone out yet.  The grounds department was 

waiting on the purchase of the new folding machine to fold the flyers.  Sandi to get an ETA on 

when they will be distributed prior to next meeting. 

C. Street Sweeper Reports – Data card corrupt – no sweeping reports for May.  The card has 

been reformatted and reports will be available for June. 
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Governor’s Letter RE:  ATRIP - Main Street Paving 

B. MPO – Consists of Daphne, most of Fairhope, some of Spanish Fort and Loxley.  Powers to 

allocate monies for highway and transportation improvements. They have allocated $108M for 

transportation and 125K for staff services.  100% of the City of Daphne is included.  Federal 

highway officials from Montgomery met with officials from each of the Cities.  The clock 

started back on March 2012.  The Policy Board must be comprised of elected officials, 

Technical (Engineers) and a citizen’s advisory board.  38% of the funds will be allocated to 

transportation projects.  As the population of each city grows, the allocated funds for that city 

grows as well.  Recommended roads being County Road 13, Old County Road to Santa Rosa, 

Ridgewood and Bayview and Park City.  There will be another meeting on June 27th where the 

cities will elect the body of the Policy Board.  Daphne will have four seats on the board due to 

population size and one division engineer.  Richard commented that the bridge on Bayview 

would be a great use of these funds.  It is weight restricted and goes over the lake.   

C. Councilwoman Barnette asked if two handicapped parking spaces could be placed closer to 

the entrance of City Hall.  She expressed that she understands that they were moved so that 

they were located at the start of the ramp, but asked if we could add two more closer to the 

entrance to accommodate handicapped people that do not need to utilize the ramp so they 

won’t have to walk so far. 

D. Richard to access franchise agreements with utilities and review.  Councilwoman Barnette 

does not believe there are any that have been executed.  To be reported on at next meeting. 

 



V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Update on May 2, 2012 Rain Event – Richard reported that current rains caused zero rain 

events.  Every reported instance from the May 2nd event has been addressed.  Timber Creek 

has a problem today with minor flooding.  All claims against the City have been turned over to 

insurance. 

B. May Day Park Coastal Engineering Monitoring.  There should not be beach on each side of 

the ramp.  The Street Department is currently removing sand on each side of the ramp. 

C. Transfer Station – Several options were presented.  The engineering company recommended 

option #2.  Richard would like to review in more detail before making any type of 

recommendation. 

 

VI. SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report – Not Reported 

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Last Quarter Tonnage Comparison).  Not Reported 

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – Minutes for April 9, 2012 meeting reviewed. 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – June 1, 2012.  Minutes reviewed 

B. Update – Councilman Lake asked what the long-term plans are for the Beautification 

Committee.  He also commented that they need a representative from District 1 on the 

Committee.  The Civic Center sign was not very visible, so it was painted white.  The signs 

for Recreation and Library will be painted white as well.  Painting them white makes them 

more visible. 

 

IX. ENVIRONMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. June 25, 2012 Meeting Cancelled.  Next meeting scheduled on July 23, 2012 at 4:00 

 

X. ENGINEER REPORT 

A. HMR Update – Doug reported that the intersection of Hwy 98/Whispering Pines is 50% 

complete.  Weather permitting; the project should be completed on time.    The storm drains 

are 90% complete.  Binder is down on both center turn lanes.  Next week they will start to sod 

the median.   

B. HMR Update – Lake Forest re-sodding to be completed next week.  Will do final walk-

through with contractor late next week. 

 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

B. Next Meeting – July 16, 2012 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT   

The meeting adjourned at 5:37 PM.  



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

































DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
JUNE 25, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLLCALL 

Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:50 p.m. 

 

Members Present: Casey Zito; Ken Balme.; Doug Bailey; Ronald Nero; Dayna Oldham; 

Mary Beth Mantiply. 

  

Also present: Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification 

Committee. 

 

Absent:  Cathy Barnette, Council Liaison. 

 

 

2.   APPROVE MINUTES / APRIL 23, 2012 & May 30, 2012 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to approve the April 23, 2012 and May 30, 2012 minutes.  

Seconded by Dayna Oldham. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR                     NONE APPROVED                     MOTION CARRIED 

 

3.    OLD BUSINESS: 

       a.)    Plaque Update: 

Doug met with Cathy to look at the area of the plaque by the steps going into city hall, and 

sent revisions of measurements to M&A and another company for a quote.  He should have 

the quotes for the July meeting. 

 

       c.)   Website 

Mr. Francis was unable to be present for this meeting. Casey said they already have the 

domain name. 

 

       d.)   Mini-Grant Application: 

 

MOTION BY Dayna Oldham to approve the mine-grant application.  Seconded by 

Ronald Nero. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR           NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Members discussed logos for the Authority, and will vote on one at the July meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                     

JUNE 25, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

2 

       e.)   Bank Account 

 

MOTION BY Mary Beth Mantiply to authorize the Chairman and Treasurer as 

signatories for the bank account.  Seconded by Dayna Oldham. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

          

       f.)  Update on Grants through Thompson Engineering for Underground Utilities 

After conferring with Riviera Utilities there is not enough damage to have a favorable BCA 

at this point.  Chris will keep the project on the back burner. 

 

The members would like the reports that Thompson received from Riviera Utilities.  

 

        g.)  AL Coastal Magazine 

 

MOTION BY Mary Beth Mantiply to expend funds in the amount of $840 for the ad 

in the AL Coastal Magazine.  Seconded by Dayna Oldham. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

Mr. Calametti will be at the July meeting. 

 

 

4.   NEW BUSINESS: 

          a.)    Bike Path 

Cathy sent word to say that when they stripe Main Street after resurfacing it they will 

include a bike lane. 

 

Ken said he meant a bike bath that will connect the city from parks all around. 

 

          b.)    New Member  

Mrs. Patricia Vanderpool attended the meeting and would like to become a member. 

 

MOTION BY Dayna Oldham to recommend to council the appointment of Patricia 

Vanderpool to the Downtown Redevelopment Authority.  Seconded by Mary Beth 

Mantiply. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

          
 



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                     

JUNE 25, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

3 

 

5.    TREASURERS REPORT: 

The balance of funds as of  April 2012 is $82,808.91.   

 

 6.   REPORT ON BEAUTIFICATION PROJECTS / DOROTHY MORRISION 

The dedication of Hero’s Point was wonderful.  They are flying flags from all branches of 

the military, and there is an eternal flame. 

 

 

7.  NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting will be July 23, 2012 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

 

8.  ADJOURN 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Downtown Redevelopment Authority       

                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

























































ORDINANCE NO. 2012 - ____ 

 

Ordinance to Rezone Property Located West Side of Alabama Highway 181, near 

the Intersection of Camberwell Drive and Devonfield Lane 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of certain real property within the City of Daphne, Alabama, have 

requested that said property be rezoned from B-1, Local Business, R-1 Low Density Single Family and R-

3 High Density Single Family Residential to R-1, Low Density  Single Family Residential District, said 

property is located West Side of Alabama Highway 181, near the intersection of Camberwell Drive and 

Devonfield Lane being more particularly described as follows:  

 

Legal Description: 

 

COMMON AREA 1A, COMMON AREA 2A, AND LOT 142A OF OLDFIELD 

RESUBDIVISION AS SHOWN BY MAP OR PLAT THEREOF RECORDED ON SLIDE 

NO. 2469-B IN THE PROBATE RECORDS, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

REFERENCE:  Oldfield Resubdivision, the Resubdivision of Common Area 1, Common Area 2, Lot 

77, and Lot 142 of Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne on June 28, 2012 has considered said 

request and failed to set forth an affirmative recommendation to the City Council of the City of Daphne that 

said property  be rezoned, although the majority voted in favor of the motion, a super majority would have 

been necessary for a favorable recommendation; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on Monday, 

August 20, 2012 concerning the requested rezoning. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, that said property described above is hereby rezoned from B-1, Local Business, R-

1 Low Density Single Family and R-3 High Density Single Family Residential to  R-1, Low Density  Single 

Family Residential District, and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said 

zoning change. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, 

THIS   _____ day of _______________, 2012. 

         

 

        _____________________________ 

        Cathy S. Barnette,  

        Council President 

                                        

 

 

        _____________________________ 

        Bailey Yelding,  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen  

City Clerk, MMC 



MINUTES - 1 

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

Utilities Board Meeting 

         City of Daphne Council Chambers  May 30, 2012  5:00 p.m. 
 

I. Call to Order 
The regular May 2012, Board meeting for the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne was held on May 30, 2012 and called to 
order by Chairman Robert Segalla, at 5:02 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call 
   Members Present: Robert Segalla, Chairman 

 Fenton E. Jenkins, Vice Chairman  
 Ron Scott, Secretary/Treasurer  
 Lon Johnston 
 
Others Absent: Bailey Yelding, Mayor 
   

      Others Present: Tony Hoffman – substitute Board Attorney 
 Rob McElroy – General Manager 
 Danny Lyndall – Operations Manager 
 Teresa Logiotatos – Finance Manager  
 Deloris Brown – Human Resources Manager 
 Drew Klumpp – Administrative Services Manager 
  Lori May-Wilson – Executive Assistant 
 Melinda Immel – Volkert & Associates 
 Ray Moore - HMR 
 

 Others Absent:  Jerry Speegle – Board Attorney 

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Chairman led the Board and meeting attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
IV. Approval of Minutes        

A. Utilities Board Minutes from April 25, 2012: 

The Chairman inquired if there were any corrections noted for the submitted Minutes from the April 25, 2012, Utilities 
Board meeting. No corrections were made. 
   

MOTION BY Ron Scott to approve the Minutes for April 25, 2012; Seconded by Lon Johnston. 

AYE: JENKINS, JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SEGALLA,  ABSENT: YELDING                 ABSTAIN:   MOTION 
CARRIED 

  
 
 
 
 
 

V. Old Business 
 Nothing to report.  



MINUTES - 2 

 
VI. New Business 

 Nothing to report.  
 

VII. BOARD ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 Mr. Hoffman had nothing further to add to his report. 
 

VIII. FINANCIAL REPORT 
 Teresa Logiotatos pointed out the group insurance figure for the Board, as well as the reduced cost for the liability 

insurance and thanked the Board for the input at the recent mid-year budget review meeting.  Mr. Scott inquired as to the 
coverage of the liability insurance.  Mrs. Logiotatos explained that coverages differ accordingly.  Mr. Scott asked for the 
Board to have an overview of all the insurance.  Mrs. Logiotatos suggested that Blackmon Insurance give the overview to 
the Board in an upcoming meeting.  Chairman Segalla requested a compilation of all the insurance liabilities including the 
Board’s insurance for each Board member.  Mr. Johnston asked to include deductibles and the effect by raising some of the 
deductibles. 

 

IX. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
A. GM Report 
Rob McElroy commended Jim Caudle and Melinda Immel on the recent presentation they gave at the Alabama Water 
Environment Association annual conference and referred to them to deliver the presentation, Cooking Up Solutions to 
Biosolids Management Issues, to the Board.  Ron Scott suggested making this presentation at an upcoming Daphne City 
Council meeting.   
 
Mr. Johnston commented on the condition of the Brianna Memorial concerning old flowers and old vases being left at the 
memorial.  Mr. McElroy stated that he would correct the situation. 
 
Deloris Brown informed the Board of Tom Nettles’ retirement effective August 1

st
.   

 
Drew Klumpp had nothing further to add to his report.  
 
Danny Lyndall had nothing further to add to his report.   

 
Melinda Immel of Volkert & Associates had nothing further to add to her report.  
 
Ray Moore of HMR had nothing further to add to the report.      

   

X. BOARD ACTION – None. 
XI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – None. 

 

XII. BOARD COMMENTS – None. 

  
XIII. ADJOURNMENT – 

 

MOTION BY Lon Johnston to adjourn the meeting; Seconded by Ron Scott. 
AYE: JENKINS, JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SEGALLA           ABSENT: YELDING             ABSTAIN:                 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
The meeting adjourned at 5:47 pm.  



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 





CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  2012-49 

2012-M-FD/THERMAL IMAGING CAMERA 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the THERMAL 
IMAGING CAMERA will exceed this amount; and 

 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the FD/THERMAL IMAGING 
CAMERA and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the FD/THERMAL IMAGING 
CAMERA be awarded to Sunbelt Fire Apparatus. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 

THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Sunbelt Fire, Inc. for a cost of $8,425/each as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO:2012-M-FD / THERMAL IMAGING CAMERA. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS          day of                        , 2012 
 
                                                                         
                                                                ________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

     

     
                                                                                                                                                                                         

_____________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
        

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  2012-50 

2012-N-JAIL FOOD SERVICE  
 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code of 
Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the JAIL FOOD 
SERVICE will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, No bids were received and therefore can be negotiated; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the negotiated bid obtained for the JAIL FOOD 
SERVICE and determined that the negotiated bid as presented is reasonable; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the JAIL FOOD SERVICE be awarded 
to Winn Dixie. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Winn Dixie  for unit cost listed as attached herein and made a part hereof for BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2012-N-JAIL FOOD SERVICE. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS              day of                               , 2012 
 
                                                                ________________________________ 
                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
         
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

 



Resolution 2012-51 
Fiber Installation to Designated City Buildings 

 
 

WHEREAS, technological advances have necessitated changes to the City of Daphne’s 
communication processes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne’s current use of DSL internet connectivity is no longer 
sufficient to meet current technological requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, fiber connectivity is the first step to providing a more efficient network 
platform to meet the City’s communication needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, future installation of wireless services will complete the upgrade of City-wide 
internet connectivity; and 
 
WHEREAS, such fiber upgrades will allow the City of Daphne to connect to Baldwin 
County’s network for 911, GIS and other county services. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne that: 
 

1) The City of Daphne enter into a contract with JMF Solutions to provide fiber 
connectivity for the City for the monthly cost of $3,950 to be included in the 
FY2013 Budget for the following locations: 

 City Hall 

 Justice Center 

 North Precinct 

 Public Works 

 Fire Station #2 

 AND  
2) The Mayor and is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with JMF 

Solutions on behalf of the City of Daphne for the fiber installation in City 
buildings. 

  

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ____ day of ____________, 2012. 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
       
      _______________________________ 
      Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 



 RESOLUTION NO. 2012 - 52  
 

APPOINTING ELECTION OFFICIALS  

MUNICIPAL ELECTION AUGUST 28, 2012 

 
WHEREAS,  a regular municipal election has been called to be held on the 28

th
 day of August, 2012, and a 

runoff election to be held if necessary, on the 9
th
 of October, 2012; and     

                                                               

WHEREAS, Section 11-46-27 of the Alabama Code of 1975, as amended, provides in part, that the 

municipal governing body, not less than 15 days before the holding of any municipal election appoint from the 

qualified electors of the respective wards or voting districts officers to hold the election; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 11-46-24 of the Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended, provides that where voting 

places are designated within each district where voting machines are used that the municipal governing body shall 

appoint election officials to consist of one chief inspector, who shall supervise the conduct of all the other officials 

and the operation of the voting place, one chief clerk,  one returning officer, and for each voting machine to be used 

at each voting place there shall be appointed two assistant clerks; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 11-46-27 requires the governing body of the municipality to appoint from the qualified 

electors of the City one inspector; one returning officer and two clerks who shall meet on the day of election at such 

place and hour as the municipal governing body may designate for the purpose of receiving, counting, and returning 

the absentee ballots at such election. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne recognizes the time spent by those who are to perform 

the duties of election officials and shall be compensated as follows: 

 

1.) Inspector $200.00 

2.) Chief Clerk $150.00 

3.) Clerk  $125.00 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama that the 

election officials for said election shall be as follows: 

 

DISTRICT 1:   Inspector  Ms. Joann Wilson 

Chief Clerk    Mrs. Jeanne Nelson  

Clerk           Mrs. Arva Brown 

Clerk   Ms. Denita Patterson   

Clerk   Mrs. Ella Fuller 

Clerk   Mrs. Elnora Jackson 

 

DISTRICT 2:   Inspector  Ms. Ruth Martin 

Chief Clerk  Mr. Jim Bodman 

Clerk   Mrs. Jane Bodman 

Clerk   Mr. William Russell 

Clerk   Mrs. Nettie Malloy 

Clerk   Mrs. Maxine Russell 

Clerk   Mrs. Mickey Boykin 

 

DISTRICT 3:   Inspector  Mr. Glenn Swaney  

Chief Clerk  Ms. Tara Packer 

Clerk   Mrs. Lillian White 

Clerk   Mrs. Betty Baker  

        Clerk   Mrs. Joyce Moore 

    Clerk   Mrs. Arcola King 



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-52                APPOINTING ELECTION OFFICIALS               PAGE 2  

    

 

DISTRICT 4:   Chief Clerk  Mr. David White 

Clerk   Ms. Phyllis Johnson 

Clerk   Mr. Bill Chappelle 

Clerk    

Clerk     

Clerk         

    

DISTRICT 5:   Inspector  Mrs. Inez Ishmael  

Clerk   Mr. Dorothy Rankin       

    Clerk   Mr. Frank Barr 

Clerk   Mrs. Ruthie Barr 

       Clerk   Mrs. Judy Wells  

Clerk   Mrs. Julie Holden 

    

DISTRICT 6:   Clerk   Mr. Bob Swindle   

Clerk   Mrs. Margaret Sue Swindle   

Clerk    Mrs. Marjorie S. Waldrop 

         Clerk  

    Clerk  

   

      

DISTRICT 7:   Inspector  Mr. John Russos 

Chief Clerk  Mrs. Jacquelyn Odom    

Clerk   Mrs. Elaine Russos 

Clerk   Ms. Monica Romagnano 

Clerk   Mrs. Frieda Romanchuk 

Clerk   Ms. Geri Andrews 

 

    

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA  

this       _____ day of _____, 2012. 

 

 

                                                                   

 Cathy S. Barnette,  

Council President 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Bailey Yelding, Jr.,  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________                                                                          
David L. Cohen,  

City Clerk, MMC 

 

 







ORDINANCE 2012 - 46 
 

Main Street Resurfacing: Ryan Avenue to Bayfront Drive 
 - Mill & Overlay Road Project 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to obtain bids for this project and design engineering services in the amount of 
$25,815 were previously approved. 
 
WHEREAS,  the Main Street – Ryan Avenue to Bayfront Drive: Mill & Overlay 
Road project ( 2.54 miles) went out for bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, an appropriation is needed for the cost of construction -  $815,642.10 
and additional engineering fees - $61,288 (survey/testing/inspection…).   (Total Project 

Cost - $902,745.10). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  

1. A change of use for funds in the amount of $876,930.10 from the 2012 
Construction Fund is approved by Council; and  

2. Funds made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for the Main Street – 
Ryan Avenue to Bayfront Drive: Mill & Overlay Road project. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 
   
      
                                                                      ________________________________ 

   Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                      
      

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
 
       
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 



ORDINANCE 2012-47  
 

Pinehill Road Resurfacing 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Pinehill Road needs repairs and resurfacing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the asphalt for the project ($35,536) will be purchased by the City from 
the City’s current bid contract; and  
 
WHEREAS, construction cost for this project is below $50,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, quotes were obtained for the construction of the project with the low 
quote being $41,264 from Asphalt Services, Inc.;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $82,500 (Materials/Testing/Construction) and 
hereby appropriate from the Four Cent Gas Tax Fund and made a part of the Fiscal 
Year 2012 budget for the Pinehill Road Resurfacing project.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 

 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President    
 
     

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

 



h 

ORDINANCE 2012-48 
Amending Use of Lodging Tax Proceeds-

Time Extension 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2009-28 as adopted May 18, 2009, respectively, provide for the levy and 

imposition of a Lodging Tax until September 30, 2009; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequently, Ordinance 2009-55 as adopted October 19, 2009 amended the use of 

Lodging Tax proceeds and set an expiration date of October 31, 2012; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city council deems that allocations be extended to October 31, 2015 f o r  t h e  

p u r p o s e  o f  bay front property debt service, future acquisition, development and maintenance of 

bay front property, industrial development, downtown redevelopment, and ground related capital for 

recreation. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA: 
SECTION 1:     Section I of Ordinance 2000-34 repealing and replacing Section 1 of 2000-25 is hereby 
amended as follows: 

 

The lodging taxes which are collected for the period of October 1, 2012 through October 31, 2015 are 
hereby divided as follows: 

 
1.  Five percent (5%) shall be paid quarter ly and used for the purpose of providing funding 

to the IDB for the implementation of strategies, action items, and tactics included in the 

Strategic Economic Development Plan as approved and adopted in Resolution 2000-31 by 

Daphne City Council June 19, 2000. 

 2.  Five percent (5%) shall be paid quarterly and used for the purpose of     
      providing funding for Downtown Redevelopment Authority. 
3.  All debt service incurred for bay front property, which is approximately $160,000 a year, will 

be paid from lodging tax proceeds. 
4.  The remainder of the lodging tax proceeds shall be divided evenly between continued bay 

front uses (acquisition, development and maintenance) and ground related capital for 
recreation- which does not include such items as trucks or maintenance of fields. 

 
All other provisions of Section I of Ordinance 2000-25 shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION II:  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE - The provision of this ordinance are severable. If any 

part of this Ordinance is declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction such 

declaration shall not affect the part that remains. 

 

SECTION Ill: EFFECTIVE DATE- This ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption 

by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, and upon publication as provided by law. 
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 

__
 
day of _______,2012.  

 
     _________________________________ 

     Cathy Barnette, Council President 
      
 
                                                     __________________________________ 
     Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 



RESOLUTION NO.  2012-48 

2012-L-FD/SELF-CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the SELF-
CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS will exceed this amount; and 

 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the FD/SELF-CONTAINED 
BREATHING APPARATUS and determined that the bid as presented is 
reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the FD/SELF-CONTAINED 
BREATHING APPARATUS be awarded to Sunbelt Fire Apparatus. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 

THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Sunbelt Fire, Inc. for a cost of $4,669/each as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO:2012-L-FD/SELF-CONTAINED BREATHING 
APPARATUS. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS          day of                        , 2012 
 
                                                                         
                                                                ________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

     

     
                                                                                                                                                                                         

_____________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
        

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

 



CITY OF DAPHNE  

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-49 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CITY OF DAPHNE PERSONNEL POLICY NO. 

1.3.3 REGULATING THE PARTICIPATION RIGHTS OF CITY OF DAPHNE 

EMPLOYEES IN POLITICAL ACTIVITIES AND ADOPTING A NEW 

ORDINANCE REGULATING THE PARTICPATION RIGHTS  

OF CITY OF DAPHNE EMPLOYEES IN  

POLITICAL ACTIVITIES   

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne has previously adopted City 

of Daphne Personnel Policy 1.3.3; and   

 

 WHEREAS, Personnel Policy 1.3.3 as currently set out in the City of Daphne 

Employee Handbook provides that employees are strictly prohibited from engaging or 

participating in political activity involving the jurisdiction in which they are employed; 

and   

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration 

believes that Personnel Policy 1.3.3 should be repealed in its entirety and replaced with a 

new policy regulating employee participation in political activity in a manner consistent 

with current Alabama law;  

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS:  

 

SECTION I: GENERAL PROVISIONS.  

 

(A) No law enforcement officer, firefighter, peace officer, or any other person in the 

employment of the City of Daphne, when off duty, out of uniform, and acting as 

a private citizen, shall be denied the right to participate in political activities to 

the same extent as any other citizen of the State of Alabama.  

 

(B) The provisions of this Ordinance shall in no way interfere with or inhibit any law 

enforcement officer, firefighter, peace officer, or other person in the employment 

of the City of Daphne’s right to vote in any municipal, county, state or national 

election. 

 

SECTION II: CONFLICT WITH OTHER ORDINANCES.  

 

 That any Ordinance or Personnel Policy heretofore adopted by the City Council of 

Daphne, Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance, be and is hereby replaced to 

the extent of such conflict.  

 



SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  

 

 That the provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any section, subsection 

sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or 

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a 

separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity 

of the remaining portions hereof.  

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law.  

 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ___ DAY OF ________, 2012.  

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       CATHY BARNETTE,  

       COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
        

 

 

       ______________________________  

       BAILEY YELDING,  

       MAYOR  

        

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

_____________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC  

 

 

 


	AGENDA - July 16
	City Roll Call
	Council Minutes - July 2
	Reporting of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes - 7-9
	Backup to Finance Minutes
	Public Safety Minutes
	Public Works Minutes - June 19 2012
	Special Reports
	BZA Minutes
	DRA Minutes - June 25
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Set Public Hearing Info
	UtilityBoard  Minutes -  may 2012
	Mayors Report
	Special Events Permit
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE
	2012-49 - RES - FD-Thermal Imaging Camera-2012
	2012-50 - RES - PD Jail Food Service-Negotiated
	2012-51 - RES - JMF Fiber - Resolution for Contract-7-12
	2012-52 - RES - ELECTION OFFICIALS
	Backup to 2012-50 - RES
	2012-46 - ORD - Main Street-Rayn Ave-BF Drive
	2012-47 - ORD - Pinehill Road Resurfacing
	2012-48 - ORD - Lodging Tax Amending Use thru Oct-15
	2012-48 - RES - FD-Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus-2012
	2012-49 - ORD - Employee Political Activity Ordinance 07-12

